

1:30 p.m.–3:30 p.m. Board Meeting.

ADDRESSES: The meetings will be held at the Embassy Suites Alexandria, 1900 Diagonal Road, Alexandria, VA.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For further information regarding the meetings, please contact Lawrence W. Roffee, Executive Director, (202) 272–5434, ext. 114 (voice) and (202) 272–5449 (TTY).

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: At the Board meeting, the Access Board will consider the following agenda items.

Open Meeting

- Executive Director's Report
- Approval of the Minutes of the March 15, 2000 Board Meeting
- Executive Committee Report—Board Meeting Policy
- Planning and Budget Committee Report—Fiscal Year 2000 Spending Plan and Status Report on Agency Goals
- Technical Programs Committee Report—Status Report on Projects

Closed Meeting

- Committee of the Whole—Americans with Disabilities Act/ Architectural Barriers Act Final Rule
- Committee of the Whole—Recreation Final Rule

All meetings are accessible to persons with disabilities. Sign language interpreters and an assistive listening system are available at all meetings.

Lawrence W. Roffee,
Executive Director.

[FR Doc. 00–17502 Filed 7–10–00; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 8150–01–P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Bureau of Export Administration

Action Affecting Export Privileges; Robert Chaegon Kim; Order Denying Export Privileges

In the Matter of: Robert Chaegon Kim currently incarcerated at: Allenwood Federal Correctional Institution, Inmate Number: 49756–083, Low Security, P.O. Box 1500, White Deer, Pennsylvania 17887 and with an address at: 20765 Bank Way, Sterling, Virginia 20165.

On July 11, 1997, following a plea of guilty to one count of an Indictment, Robert Chaegon Kim (Kim) was convicted in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia of violating Section 793(b) and (g) of the Espionage Act (currently codified at 18 U.S.C.A. §§ 792–799 (1976 & Supp. 2000)). Kim was convicted of conspiring to gather national defense information with the intent that the information be

used to the advantage of a foreign nation, South Korea.

Section 11(h) of the Export Administration Act of 1979, as amended (currently codified at 50 U.S.C.A. app. §§ 2401–2420 (1991 & Supp. 2000)) (the Act),¹ provides that, at the discretion of the Secretary of Commerce,² no person convicted of violating Section 793 of the Espionage Act, or certain other provisions of the United States Code, shall be eligible to apply for or use any export license issued pursuant to, or provided by, the Act or the Export Administration Regulations (currently codified at 15 CFR Parts 730–774 (1999), as amended (65 FR 14862, March 20, 2000)) (the Regulations), for a period of up to 10 years from the date of the conviction. In addition, any license issued pursuant to the Act in which such a person had any interest at the time of conviction may be revoked.

Pursuant to Sections 766.25 and 750.8(a) of the Regulations, upon notification that a person has been convicted of violating Section 793 of the Espionage Act, the Director, Office of Exporter Services, in consultation with the Director, Office of Export Enforcement, shall determine whether to deny that person's export privileges for a period of up to 10 years from the date of conviction and shall also determine whether to revoke any license previously issued to such a person.

Having received notice of Kim's conviction for violating Section 793(b) and (g) of the Espionage Act, and after providing notice and an opportunity for Kim to make a written submission to the Bureau of Export Administration before issuing an Order denying his export privileges, as provided in Section 766.25 of the Regulations, I, following consultations with the Director, Office of Export Enforcement, have decided to deny Kim's export privileges for a period of 10 years from the date of his conviction. The 10-year period ends on July 11, 2007. I have also decided to revoke all license issued pursuant to the

Act in which Kim had an interest at the time of his conviction.

Accordingly, it is hereby *Ordered*.

I. Until July 11, 2007, Robert Chaegon Kim, currently incarcerated at: Allenwood Federal Correctional Institution, Inmate Number: 49756–083, Low Security, P.O. Box 1500, White Deer, Pennsylvania 17887, and with an address at: 20765 Bank Way, Sterling, Virginia 20165, may not, directly or indirectly, participate in any way in any transaction involving any commodity, software or technology (hereinafter collectively referred to as “item”) exported or to be exported from the United States, that is subject to the Regulations, or in any other activity subject to the Regulations, including, but not limited to:

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using any license, License Exception, or export control document;

B. Carrying on negotiations concerning, or ordering, buying, receiving, using, selling, delivering, storing, disposing of, forwarding, transporting, financing, or otherwise servicing in any way, any transaction involving any item exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, or in any other activity subject to the Regulations; or

C. Benefiting in any way from any transaction involving any item exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, or in any other activity subject to the Regulations.

II. No person may, directly or indirectly, do any of the following:

A. Export or reexport to or on behalf of the denied person any item subject to the Regulations;

B. Take any action that facilitates the acquisition or attempted acquisition by the denied person of the ownership, possession, or control of any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States, including financing or other support activities related to a transaction whereby the denied person acquires or attempts to acquire such ownership, possession or control;

C. Take any action to acquire from or to facilitate the acquisition or attempted acquisition from the denied person of any item subject to the Regulations that has been exported from the United States;

D. Obtain from the denied person in the United States any item subject to the Regulations with knowledge or reason to know that the item will be, or is intended to be, exported from the United States; or

¹ The Act expired on August 20, 1994. Executive Order 12924 (3 CFR, 1994 Comp. 917 (1995)), extended by Presidential Notices of August 15, 1995 (3 CFR, 1995 Comp. 501 (1996)), August 14, 1996 (3 CFR, 1996 Comp. 298 (1997)), August 13, 1997 (3 CFR, 1997 Comp. 306 (1998)), August 13, 1998 (3 CFR, 1998 Comp. 294 (1999)) and August 10, 1999 (3 CFR, 1999 Comp. 302 (2000)), continued the Export Administration Regulations in effect under the International Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C.A. §§ 1701–1706 (1991 & Supp. 2000)).

² Pursuant to appropriate delegations of authority that are reflected in the Regulations, the Director, Office of Exporter Services, in consultation with the Director, Office of Export Enforcement, exercises the authority granted to the Secretary by Section 11(h) of the Act.

E. Engage in any transaction to service any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States and which is owned, possessed or controlled by the denied person, or service any item, of whatever origin, that is owned, possessed or controlled by the denied person if such service involves the use of any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States. For purposes of this paragraph, servicing means installation, maintenance, repair, modification or testing.

III. After notice and opportunity for comment as provided in Section 766.23 of the Regulations, any person, firm, corporation, or business organization related to Kim by affiliation, ownership, control, or position of responsibility in the conduct of trade or related services may also be subject to the provisions of this Order.

IV. This Order does not prohibit any export, reexport, or other transaction subject to the Regulations where the only items involved that are subject to the Regulations are the foreign-produced direct product of U.S.-origin technology.

V. This Order is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until July 11, 2007.

VI. In accordance with Part 756 of the Regulations, Kim may file an appeal from this Order with the Under Secretary for Export Administration. The appeal must be filed within 45 days from the date of this Order and must comply with the provisions of Part 756 of the Regulations.

VII. A copy of this Order shall be delivered to Kim. This Order shall be published in the **Federal Register**.

Dated: June 27, 2000.

Eileen M. Albanese,

Director, Office of Exporter Services.

[FR Doc. 00-17476 Filed 7-10-00; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3510-DT-M

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Foreign-Trade Zones Board

[Docket 45-99]

Foreign-Trade Zone 27—Boston, MA; Application for Subzone Status, J. Baker, Inc. (Distribution of Apparel, Footwear and Accessories), Canton, MA; Amendment of Application

Notice is hereby given that the application of the Massachusetts Port Authority, grantee of FTZ 27, requesting authority for special-purpose subzone status for the apparel, footwear and

accessories distribution facility of J. Baker, Inc. (J. Baker), has been amended to include an additional site at 120 Shawmut Road (67,200 sq. ft.), Canton, Massachusetts.

The application otherwise remains unchanged.

The comment period is reopened to August 10, 2000.

Dated: June 29, 2000.

Dennis Puccinelli,

Acting Executive Secretary.

[FR Doc. 00-17388 Filed 7-10-00; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3510-DS-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

International Trade Administration

[(A-427-801) (A-428-801) (A-475-801) (A-588-804) (A-559-801) (A-412-801) (A-570-601)]

Continuation of Antidumping Duty Orders: Certain Bearings From France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, the United Kingdom, and the People's Republic of China

AGENCY: Import Administration, International Trade Administration, Department of Commerce.

ACTION: Notice of Continuation of Antidumping Duty Orders: Certain Bearings from France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, the United Kingdom, and the People's Republic of China.

SUMMARY: On November 4, 1999 (with respect to France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, and the United Kingdom) and on April 3, 2000 (with respect to the People's Republic of China ("PRC")), the Department of Commerce ("the Department"), pursuant to sections 751(c) and 752 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended ("the Act"), determined that revocation of the antidumping duty orders on certain bearings from France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, the United Kingdom, and the PRC would be likely to lead to continuation or recurrence of dumping (64 FR 60321, 60309, 60291, 60275, 60287, 60326, and 65 FR 11550, respectively). On June 28, 2000, the International Trade Commission ("the Commission"), pursuant to section 751(c) of the Act, determined that revocation of these antidumping duty orders on certain bearings from France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, the United Kingdom, and the PRC would be likely to lead to continuation or recurrence of material injury to an industry in the United States within a reasonably foreseeable time (65 FR 39925). Therefore, pursuant to 19 CFR 351.218(f)(4), the Department is publishing notice of the continuation

of antidumping duty orders on certain bearings from France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, the United Kingdom, and the PRC.

EFFECTIVE DATE: July 11, 2000.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Eun W. Cho or James Maeder, Office of Policy for Import Administration, International Trade Administration, U.S. Department of Commerce, 14th Street and Constitution Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20230; telephone: (202) 482-1698 or (202) 482-3330, respectively.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background

On April 1, 1999, the Department initiated, and the Commission instituted, sunset reviews (64 FR 15727 and 64 FR 15783, respectively) of the antidumping duty orders on certain bearings from France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, the United Kingdom, and the PRC, pursuant to section 751(c) of the Act. As a result of its reviews, the Department found that revocation of the antidumping duty orders would be likely lead to continuation or recurrence of dumping and notified the Commission of the magnitude of the margins likely to prevail were the orders to be revoked.¹

On June 28, 2000, the Commission determined, pursuant to section 751(c) of the Act, that revocation of the antidumping duty orders on certain bearings from France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Singapore, the United Kingdom, and the PRC would be likely to lead to continuation or recurrence of material injury to an industry in the United States within a reasonably foreseeable time (see, Certain Bearings From China, France, Germany, Hungary, Italy, Japan, Romania, Singapore, Sweden, and the United Kingdom, 65 FR 39925 (June 28, 2000) and USITC Publication 3309, Investigations Nos. AA1921-143, 731-TA-341, 731-TA-343-345, 731-TA-391-397, and 731-TA-399 (Review) (June 2000)).

¹ See Final Results of Expedited Sunset Reviews: Antifriction Bearings From France, 64 FR 60321 (November 4, 1999); Final Results of Expedited Sunset Reviews: Antifriction Bearings From Germany, 64 FR 60309 (November 4, 1999); Final Results of Expedited Sunset Review: Cylindrical Roller Bearings From Italy, 64 FR 60291 (November 4, 1999); Final Results of Expedited Sunset Reviews: Antifriction Bearings From Japan, 64 FR 60275 (November 4, 1999); Final Results of Expedited Sunset Review: Ball Bearings From Singapore, 64 FR 60287 (November 4, 1999); Final Results of Expedited Sunset Reviews: Antifriction Bearings From the United Kingdom, 64 FR 60326 (November 4, 1999); and Tapered Roller Bearings From the People's Republic of China; Final Results of Full Sunset Review, 65 FR 11550 (March 3, 2000).